
 

 

 -1- 

 

SOUTH BROWARD DRAINAGE DISTRICT 

GOVERNING BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 
JUNE 30, 2016 

 

Present: 

Scott Hodges, Chairperson  Kevin M. Hart, District Director 

James Ryan, Vice Chairperson     Douglas R. Bell, Legal Counsel 

Vicki Minnaugh, Treasurer     Reina Muniz, Recording Secretary 

Robert E. Goggin, IV, Secretary    General Public: See Attached List 

Alanna Mersinger, Commissioner        

Thomas Good, Commissioner          

Mercedes Santana-Woodall, Commissioner 

              

Absent: 

     

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

 

01.   CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

   Chair Hodges called the SBDD Board Meeting to order at 8:05 A.M.; with Vice Chair Ryan, 

Commissioner Minnaugh, Commissioner Mersinger, Commissioner Goggin, and Commissioner 

Santana-Woodall present; followed by the Pledge of Allegiance.  

 

02.   PUBLIC COMMENT  

 

None.  

 

03.   APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

Commissioner Minnaugh moved for approval of the minutes of the May 26, 2016, South Broward 

Drainage District Board meeting.  Motion was seconded by Commissioner Goggin and it was carried 

unanimously. 

 

04. DIRECTOR=S REPORT  

 

A. CONTRACT AWARDS: 

 

1. SBDD DISASTER DEBRIS MONITORING SERVICES 

 

District Director Hart stated that SBDD advertised for bids for Disaster Debris Monitoring 

Services.  The District received a total of two (2) bids.  The bid is for monitoring of post-storm 

disaster recovery work performed by SBDD Contractors following a declared Disaster/State of 

Emergency in accordance with FEMA and State of Florida requirements and includes a series of 

hourly rates for personnel.   The bid documents allow the District to award multiple contracts.   

 

In order to provide SBDD with the highest level of flexibility, and to serve the best interests of 

the District, District Director Hart recommended that the District award a contract for Disaster 

Debris Monitoring Services to the following Consultants: 

 



 

 

 -2- 

 

 True North Emergency Management 

 Hazen & Sawyer 

 

District Director Hart said that individual work orders would be issued under the contract 

documents, following a state declared disaster, to any firm listed above based on factors 

including, but not limited to, hourly rates, availability, responsiveness, the specific needs of the 

District, type of monitoring needed, location, and/or the severity of the storm, and/or the extent 

of damages. 

 

SBDD has reviewed all of the bids submitted and have checked references for those companies 

that SBDD has not worked with directly.  SBDD has determined that both Contractors are 

qualified to perform the work and that both bids meet the requirements. 

 

District Director Hart requested approval to award contracts for the Disaster Debris Monitoring 

Services to the both Consultants listed above. 

 

Commissioner Minnaugh moved for approval of the contract for the Disaster Debris Monitoring 

Services to True North Emergency Management and Hazen & Sawyer as recommended by the 

District Director.  Motion was seconded by Commissioner Goggin. 

 

In discussion, Commissioner Minnaugh asked if the contracts that are being reviewed for 

consideration were updated contracts or new contracts.  District Director Hart replied that they 

are new contracts.  He said that once the contracts are approved by the Board, the District will 

replace the existing contracts with new contracts, and Attorney Bell will review them as well.   

 

Commissioner Minnaugh commented that when the big storm hit back in 2005, even though the 

District had contracts, other agencies would offer the contractors more money, and the contractors 

would bail out and go take more money; and now you’re sitting there asking what do we do now; 

but most of this cost will be reimbursable under FEMA.   

 

District Director Hart indicated that the Debris Monitoring contractor will not actually do any 

construction work; they will be monitoring and recording the number of trucks, volume of fill, 

etc., and making sure that the contractors are following proper procedures, and that the paperwork 

is in order to get the reimbursement that the District would request from FEMA. 

 

Commissioner Goggin wanted clarification on what “E-Ticket Unit” means.  District Director 

Hart clarified that those are forms that would be used for documentation purposes.  He said that 

the District has their own forms that they have prepared, and he does not believe that other forms 

will be needed.  Commissioner Goggin also wanted clarification of “Use of Vehicle”, listed under 

reimbursable expenses.  District Director Hart clarified that this is if the contractor were using a 

vehicle and they wanted to get reimbursed for mileage or travel time.  He said that he does not 

see where SBDD would be approving that under this contract. 

 

Commissioner Mersinger commented that she understood that True North Emergency 

Management has the same personnel, but has changed their name.  District Director Hart replied 

yes.  Commissioner Mersinger stated that if in any way, the District finds that the name change 

was for a reason that is not conducive to our doing business with them, can the District cancel the 

contract.  District Director Hart replied yes; the District has a right to cancel the contract.  He said 

that the name change was done as part of a merger and consolidation.   

 



 

 

 -3- 

 

Chair Hodges asked what the term of the contract was.  District Director Hart replied that the term 

is two years with a right to renew for two additional years.   

 

The question was called and it was carried unanimously. 

 

2. SBDD 70-HOUR POST STORM DEBRIS/TREE REMOVAL SERVICES 

 

District Director Hart stated that SBDD advertised for bids for 70 Hour Post Storm Debris/Tree 

Removal Services and received a total of four (4) bids.  The bid is for work to be performed 

during the first 70 hours following a declared Disaster/State of Emergency and includes a series 

of hourly rates for equipment and personnel; and as with the Monitoring Service Contract, in 

accordance with FEMA and State of Florida requirements.   The bid documents allow the District 

to award multiple contracts.   

 

In order to provide SBDD with the highest level of flexibility, and to serve the best interests of 

the District, District Director Hart recommended that the District award a contract for 70 Hour 

Post Storm Debris/Tree Removal Services to the following Contractors: 

 

 Custom Tree Care, Inc. 

 Ceres Environmental Services, Inc. 

 T.F.R. Enterprises, Inc. 

 Weekley Asphalt Paving, Inc. 

 

District Director Hart said that individual work orders would be issued under the contract 

documents, following a state declared disaster, to any firm listed above based on factors 

including, but not limited to, hourly rates, availability, responsiveness, the specific needs of the 

District, type of equipment needed, location, and/or the severity of the storm, and/or the extent 

of damages. 

 

SBDD has reviewed all of the bids submitted and have checked references for those companies 

that SBDD has not worked with directly.  SBDD has determined that all of the Contractors are 

qualified to perform the work and that all of the bids meet the requirements 

 

District Director Hart requested approval to award contracts for the 70 Hour Post Storm 

Debris/Tree Removal Services to the four (4) Contractors listed above. 

 

Commissioner Minnaugh moved for approval to award the contract for the 70-Hr. Post Storm 

Debris/Tree Removal Services to Custom Tree Care, Inc., Ceres Envoronmental Services, Inc., 

T.F.R. Enterprises, Inc. and Weekley Asphalt Paving, Inc. as recommended by the District 

Director.  Motion was seconded by Commissioner Goggin and it was carried unanimously. 

 

 Commissioner Good joined the meeting at approximately 8:18 a.m. 

 

3. SBDD 70-HOUR POST STORM VAC TRUCK/DREDGER SERVICES 

 

District Director Hart stated that SBDD advertised for bids for 70 Hour Post Storm Vac 

Truck/Dredger Services.  SBDD received a total of two (2) bids.  The bid is for work to be 

performed during the first 70 hours following a declared Disaster/State of Emergency and 

includes a series of hourly rates for equipment and personnel.   The bid documents allow the 

District to award multiple contracts. 



 

 

 -4- 

 

 

In order to provide SBDD with the highest level of flexibility, and to serve the best interests of 

the District, District Director Hart recommended that the District award a contract for 70 Hour 

Post Storm Vac Truck/Dredger Services to the following Contractors: 

 

 Shenandoah General Construction Company 

 Industrial Divers Corp. 

 

Individual Work Orders would be issued under the contract documents, following a state 

declared disaster, to any firm listed above based on factors including, but not limited to, hourly 

rates, availability, responsiveness, the specific needs of the District, type of equipment needed, 

location, and/or the severity of the storm, and/or the extent of damages. 

 

SBDD has reviewed all of the bids submitted and have checked references for those companies 

that SBDD has not worked with directly.  SBDD has determined that all of the Contractors are 

qualified to perform the work and that all of the bids meet the requirements. 

 

District Director Hart requested approval to award contracts for the 70 Hour Post Storm Vac 

Truck/Dredger Services to the two (2) Contractors listed above. 

 

Commissioner Minnaugh moved for approval to award SBDD 70 Hour Post Storm Vac 

Truck/Dredger Services to Shenandoah General Construction Company, and to Industrial Divers 

Corp. as recommended by the District Director.  Motion was seconded by Commissioner Santana-

Woodall and it was carried unanimously. 

 

B. RE-INVESTMENT OF DISTRICT FUNDS 

 

District Director Hart stated that the following investment funds are scheduled to mature over 

the next three months: 

1. Centennial Bank CD - $247,500   Maturity Date –  7/19/2016 

2. TD Bank CD - $247,500    Maturity Date -    8/7/2016 

3. Stonegate Bank CD - $247,500   Maturity Date -    8/8/2016 

4. Landmark Bank CD - $247,500   Maturity Date -  8/14/2016 

5. Bank United CD - $247,506    Maturity Date –  9/30/2016 

 

On May 24, 2016, the Finance and Investment Committee met to discuss the District’s options 

for re-investing the cash-on-hand that will be available upon the maturity of these investment 

funds.   The recommendation from the Finance and Investment Committee is to re-invest these 

funds in new 12-month CDs.   

 

A 12 month cash flow analysis by SBDD staff indicates that the District will have adequate cash-

on-hand over the 12-month period of the new CDs. 

 

District Director Hart requested approval to re-invest the monies that will become available from 

five CDs scheduled to mature over the next three months by purchasing new 12-month CDs.  

 

Commissioner Minnaugh moved for approval to re-invest the monies that will become available 

from a maturing CD investment next month by purchasing new 12-month CDs.  Motion was 

seconded by Commissioner Mersinger. 

 



 

 

 -5- 

 

Vice Chair Ryan asked what was done with the interest.  Commissioner Minnaugh replied that 

the interest goes back into the General Operating Fund.   

 

The question was called and it was carried unanimously. 

 

C. SBDD RESOLUTION 2016-04 – AGREEMENT WITH VENTURA POINTE HOUSING, 

LLC TO ALLOW A DRAINAGE OUTFALL CONNECTION TO SBDD’S C-1 CANAL. 

 

District Director Hart presented proposed Resolution 2016-04 which authorizes South Broward 

Drainage District (SBDD) to enter into an Agreement with Ventura Pointe Housing, LLC to 

allow a drainage outfall connection into the District’s Canal No. 1.  

 

District Director Hart stated that Ventura Point Housing, LLC (Developer) is proposing to 

construct a 206 unit multi-family, residential development at the southeast corner of Pasadena 

Blvd. and University Dr. in the City of Pembroke Pines.  The project borders the District’s Canal 

No. 1 and is located outside of the District’s jurisdictional limits; within the jurisdictional limits 

of the Central Broward Water Control District (CBWCD).  Due to its close proximity, the 

Developer is requesting a drainage overflow connection into the District’s Canal No. 1. 

 

The proposed Agreement includes the following provisions for allowing the drainage outfall 

connection from the Ventura Pointe development (Project): 

 

 The water management and drainage plan for the Project will include a minimum of 15% 

water management area which is consistent with the District’s requirements and criteria for its 

S-1 Drainage Basin. 

 

 The discharge from the proposed drainage outfall connection from the Project into the 

District’s Canal No. 1 will be limited to the allowable discharge rate as stipulated in the rules 

and criteria of CBWCD and the South Florida Water Management District (SFWMD). 

 

 Developer will construct a Control Structure, which shall limit and control the stormwater 

discharge from the Project into the District’s Canal No. 1 in accordance with CBWCD and 

SFWMD rules and criteria. 

 

 Developer has demonstrated through stormwater modeling and engineering calculations 

that there will be no expected adverse impacts to the District’s S-1 Drainage Basin as a result of 

the design discharge rates from the Subject Property into the District’s Canal No. 1. 

 

 Developer has also demonstrated through stormwater modeling and engineering 

calculations that there will be no expected adverse impacts to any downstream property as a 

result of the design discharge rates from the Subject Property into the District’s Canal No. 1. 

  

 District shall collect an initial user fee and an annual user fee for the outfall connection from 

the Subject Property into the District’s Canal No. 1. 

 

 The amount of user fees will be equivalent to $21.50 per residential unit or a total of 

$4,429.00. 

 

 The District reserves the right to adjust the annual user fee to match its annual assessment 

rate for Multi-Family Residential Units. 



 

 

 -6- 

 

 

 Developer shall obtain permits from the District, SFWMD, and CBWCD for the proposed 

drainage improvements on Subject Property and within the Canal No.1 Right-of-Way. 

 

 Developer shall be responsible to comply with all local, state and federal regulatory 

requirements for water quality associated with the development of the Subject Property and the 

C-1 Canal Right-of-Way, including those regulatory requirements that are in place now or that 

are instituted in the future.   

 

 Developer shall provide the District with as-built drawings of the drainage improvements on 

the Subject Property and within the District’s C-1 Canal Right-of-Way upon the completion of 

construction.  

 

 Developer shall maintain the drainage improvements on the Subject Property and within the 

C-1 Canal Right-of-Way, including, but not limited to the Control Structure. 

 

 Developer shall pay for all costs associated with the Agreement. 

 

 Developer shall allow the District to utilize any engineering document, report, calculation, 

modeling data, etc. prepared as part of this Agreement for any purpose as deemed appropriate by 

the District, and at no cost to the District. 

 

 The District and Developer agree that the initial user fee and all subsequent annual user fees 

shall be retained by the District and shall be used by the District in whatever way deemed 

necessary or appropriate by the District in the District=s sole discretion. 

 

 The District will issue an Invoice to Developer on or about October 1st of each year and 

payment will be due on November 1st. 

 

 In the event payment of the user fee, or payment of any other cost incurred by the District in 

association with the Agreement, is not received by District within thirty (30) days of its due date, 

then the District shall be entitled to file a lien in the Broward County Public Records. 

 

 All successors to Developer shall be bound by this Agreement.   

 

District staff has no objections to the proposed drainage outfall connection, as the impacts to the 

District’s facilities are negligible. 

 

There are no financial impacts to this Agenda Item; the proposed Agreement includes provisions 

for payment of an initial user fee and an annual user fee, and reimbursement of all costs 

associated with the preparation of the Agreement. 

 

District Director Hart requested approval of Resolution 2016-04 authorizing SBDD to enter into 

an Agreement with Ventura Pointe Housing, LLC to allow a drainage outfall connection into the 

District’s Canal No. 1.   

   

Commissioner Goggin moved for approval of Resolution 2016-04 authorizing SBDD to enter into 

an Agreement with Ventura Pointe Housing, LLC to allow a drainage outfall connection into the 

District’s Canal No. 1.  Motion was seconded by Commissioner Mersinger. 

 



 

 

 -7- 

 

Discussion ensued.   

 

Mr. Matthew Novack from Craven Thompson & Associates, and Mr. Ron Roan from Ventura 

Pointe Housing, LLC, were present to answer any questions. 

 

Commissioner Mersinger asked Mr. Roan if this development will be a gated development with 

a HOA.  Mr. Roan replied that at this point there is no HOA; that it will be a rental community 

and it will be gated.  Commissioner Mersinger commented that a management company will be 

assuming this development after Venutra Pointe Housing, LLC leaves the development.  Mr. Roan 

said that they will continue to own it, and they will have a management company; but Ventura 

Pointe Housing LLC will be responsible for paying the annual fees.  Commissioner Mersinger 

said that if at some point they sell, will this transfer to the next person that purchases it.  Mr. Roan 

said yes. 

 

Commissioner Minnaugh asked District Director Hart, if there could be some sort of provision in 

the resolution that if they decide to sell off all the individual units and make it into some sort of 

condominium, that it would have to be disclosed that the owners will be paying the user fee 

individually on their taxes.  District Director Hart replied that the recommendation is that the 

obligation would go to the HOA as opposed to the individual unit owners.  He said that staff did 

not want to go to 200 individuals to try to collect.  It was preferable to deal with one entity which 

would be the successor to the developer (the HOA).  Commissioner Minnaugh replied that if that 

successor decides to sell off the individual units, now you have 206 individual owners; and if they 

are having financial problems, that association will not pay a thing; and now who does the District 

collect that annual fee from; and who do they look to for that annual fee. 

 

Commissioner Good agreed with Commissioner Minnaugh.  He said that she brings up a good 

point.  He said there is a potential for this to be sold as individual units, because he has seen that 

happen; and now you have single owners with folio numbers rather than a folio number that covers 

the whole property.  He said that although it says it is a covenant with the land, how does that 

translate into the many folio numbers that could be generated from that single folio number.  

Attorney Bell replied that the lien would be on the entire parcel if the District were to lien it.  He 

thinks the District could request the Property Appraiser to place the annual fee on the tax bill.  He 

said a provision may be placed so that the HOA, if one is created, would take over, and then have 

a second provision that the property owners acknowledge and agree, if applicable, that the 

individual units would be assessed on the annual tax bill.  Chair Hodges asked if they would also 

be paying taxes to Central Broward Water Control District.  Attorney Bell replied yes.  Chair 

Hodges asked if the District also has the ability to tax them.  Attorney Bell replied yes; there are 

lots of overlaps.  Commissioner Minnaugh commented that SBDD’s taxes are a user fee, and that 

her concern is that in the event something were to happen, how does the District get their fee.  She 

asked Attorney Bell if there is any way to place a provision in the agreement that they would have 

to come to us perhaps for approval before there is any sale, transfer, etc. to make sure that the 

District is protected.  Attorney Bell said that he could account for a number of scenarios, and of 

course what actually happens may be totally different.  Commissioner Minnaugh said that she is 

just looking at protecting the District’s interest in the Agreement.  

 

Commissioner Good suggested that this agreement can actually capture what is being 

recommended by Commissioner Minnaugh, as well as maintaining the convenience of billing.  

He thinks that the language needs to be referenced such that if the property should ever be sold or 

broken into different folio numbers, then that charge would be broken down into a prorata format 

or whatever the appropriate term would be.   

 



 

 

 -8- 

 

Commissioner Minnaugh said that they she presumes that it would also fall under the 5-year re-

certification like everything else.  District Director Hart replied yes.  Commissioner Minnaugh 

said that the language needs to be strong enough so that the District does not get in a similar 

situation as with some of the present commercial properties.  She has concerns with the 

maintenance part of it.  Attorney Bell said that Central Broward Water Control District (CBWCD) 

also has the 5-year recertification, and they would have to do the 5-year recertification for both 

Districts.  Chair Hodges commented that he also had concerns regarding the maintenance and 

wanted to know if SBDD is the enforcer or CBWCD.  District Director Hart replied both; they 

will have to go to CBWCD first, but SBDD has the right to go in as well. 

 

Commissioner Minnaugh asked District Director Hart about the structure.  She asked what type 

of structure is it.  District Director Hart explained that it will be a concrete structure; a box similar 

to a typical control structure; below ground with a weir plate between their development and the 

District’s canal.  He said that the weir plate will regulate the discharge and it will be accessible; 

and they will be able to get in, clean it and maintain it.  Commissioner Minnaugh asked who will 

have control of the weir.  District Director Hart replied that all parties would have control of it.  

He said it is a fixed weir and it will be inspected every 5 years, or more.  Commissioner Minnaugh 

asked if the District owns that canal. District Director Hart replied yes, the District owns the canal.  

Commissioner Minnaugh commented that whatever improvements that they are making, the 

District is supervising it.  District Director Hart said absolutely.  

 

Commissioner Santana-Woodall commented that everyone knows that the canal on University 

Drive gets dirty; and now there will be 200 units on that canal; and  as far as cleaning, is the 

developer going to have an agreement to maintain the area, or is the District going to watch to see 

if there is more debris because of this development being there.  District Director Hart replied yes, 

and that Venutra Pointe Housing, LLC, will be doing an agreement with the District for the portion 

within the District’s boundaries.  He said that although this is at the very north end of the canal, 

he believes that this will be a benefit to our canal, because they will be doing some improvements 

to it; they will be deepening it and reinforcing the banks, etc.; and the discharge rate will be very 

small.   

 

Commissioner Minnaugh asked what would be the alternative if the District said no to this.  Mr. 

Novak replied that if this outfall was not connected into SBDD’s canal, then they would have to 

go through CBWCD’s canal which is 1000 feet north of this site; and it would be an additional 

cost of approximately $50,000 to $100,000.  Attorney Bell added that they would also have to get 

permission of the underlying property owners.  Central Broward does not have any easements to 

connect to its canals.   

 

Commissioner Goggin commented that on the blue prints he sees a lake at the east end of the 

property, and he asked District Director Hart if this is for a water management, and if it would be 

through CBWCD.  District Director Hart replied yes; they will have their own on-site drainage 

system, and he referenced to the Board that the property is consistent with SBDD’s rules and 

criteria when it comes to on-site storage and water management.  They have the same 

requirements as far as the lake and storage on the property, and they have done all the calculations 

to show that the site will be protected for the 10-year/100-year flood events.  Commissioner 

Goggin commented that the property collects a lot of water due to the high elevation of Pasadena 

Blvd.  He said Pasadena Blvd. sits high in that area, so obviously that piece of land to the south 

side is low.  He commented that he is sure that there has been much studying to understand that, 

and to offset that.  District Director Hart agreed, and said that they have shown that there will not 

be any impacts to surrounding properties as a result to the development.  Commissioner Goggin 

asked if there are any wetlands created around the lake.  District Director Hart replied that 



 

 

 -9- 

 

CBWCD has a requirement for wetlands, and he deferred to Mr. Novak to answer that question.  

Mr. Novak replied that there will be a literal shelf which is just a higher bank with landscaping 

and environmentally friendly plants all around the lake. 

 

Chair Hodges commented that it seems that they are taking on some off-site run-off as well.  

District Director Hart said that they are doing work on University Drive and Pasadena Blvd, and 

are extending the existing culvert.  Chair Hodges asked if SBDD is taking the run-off from 

Pasadena Blvd., and has it been taken into account on the pre-post.  District Director Hart replied 

yes; it has been taken into account on the pre-post.  Chair Hodges asked on the drainage from 

Pasadena Blvd., is that only roadway, or is that taking in some off-site properties from the north 

of Pasadena Blvd.  Mr. Novak replied no, that it is only from Pasadena Blvd. and they are also 

placing in some exfiltration trench along Pasadena Blvd.  Chair Hodges asked if they are placing 

the typical fabric form detail on the headwall.  District Director Hart replied yes. 

 

Commissioner Minnaugh asked at what time do they pay the initial fee.  District Director replied 

that he believes it’s within 30 days, upon execution of the agreement. 

 

Commissioner Good had concerns that the agreement has no specific reference to not allowing 

any additional connections to the system.  He said that he understands that they have a total 

discharge volume limit, but he also heard Mr. Novak say that after 25-year storm limit, all bets 

are off.   He said that he is also concerned that in the future there could be someone who comes 

in and says that they could connect to that system because there could be a localized flooding 

issue or a localized issue; and that the language has no specific reference to absolutely no 

additional connections to the system.  He also did not see anything regarding Hold Harmless 

language to protect the District.  Commissioner Good also had concerns because there are two 

Districts involved; what happens in a 5-year recertification, if both Districts have a conflict.  Who 

has superceding authority. He said the agreement does not state who has superceding authority.  

District Director Hart replied that those same issues come up when you get your initial permits 

and approvals; you do have to get permits from multiple agencies, and there are some overlaps.  

He said that there are occasions when you can have approval from one agency and the other 

agency is more restrictive; and it’s a requirement of the developer and applicant that they get all 

parties to agree on all aspects.  He said that at least on the permitting side, if there is a discrepancy, 

it is up to the applicant to work it out with both agencies; it’s their burden to get approval from 

both.  Commissioner Good said that he also knows that when there is a pure conflict, one agency 

supercedes the other.  He said that if there is a conflict then they would have to get both approvals 

and make a specific reference in the agreement that the 5-year recertification will require both 

approvals, if that is the way it goes.  District Director Hart agreed with Commissioner Good and 

said they will add language that will specifically state and make reference that they will be 

required to meet the requirements of both 5-year recertifications.   

 

District Director Hart said they will add the following language in the agreement: 

 

1. No additional connections allowed. 

2. Hold Harmless/Indemnification language. 

3. Add language on the 5-year recertification and the question of conflict; so that there is no 

issues. 

4. Add language on the future obligation and ability of the District to transfer payment to 

individual property owners based on folio numbers.  

 

Commissioner Minnaugh had concerns that if the conflict could not be resolved and everyone is 

frustrated, there will be a lawsuit, and she does not feel that SBDD should pay to defend that 



 

 

 -10- 

 

lawsuit because CBWCD and SBDD cannot agree, and the developer has taken the position that 

they are not going to do anything because you can’t make all parties happy.  She said someone 

will file a lawsuit and it could be dragged out for years.  She said that the District should not be 

paying anything for it, and in the agreement and the resolution it should be clear that both have to 

agree; but it’s not always clear that both entities are going to be able to agree.  District Director 

Hart said that he agrees, but he thinks that in the maintenance agreement there is language that 

speaks to legal fees and reimbursement, but as far as a conflict with South Broward, if the District 

feels that there is a need or that maintenance needs to be done that is not being done, the District 

has the right to go in and do the work and then get reimbursed by the property owner for that 

work.  There is a process that is spelled out in the agreement.  He deferred to Attorney Bell to 

elaborate.  Attorney Bell said that he thinks there could be language that basically says, “that in 

the event any litigation regarding any conflict whatsoever, that the property owner will be 

responsible to reimburse the District for all legal fees incurred in defending . . . .” 

 

Commissioner Mersinger commented that she finds that a bit bizarre, because she said you’re 

telling me ahead of time that if she sues you, she will assume the cost even if she wins the lawsuit.  

Attorney Bell said that would be a conflict between the District and the property owner; and if it’s 

a conflict between the District and the property owner, then usually, the prevailing party wins; but 

if it’s a conflict between Central Broward and South Broward then yes.  Commissioner Mersinger 

said that she’s talking about the two governmental agencies, because otherwise it did not make 

sense to her.  Attorney Bell said that the primary purpose of this agreement is the user fee which 

really does not affect Central Broward at all, and so that’s why they are not a party to it.  Chair 

Hodges asked won’t the conflict be resolved in the permit.  District Director Hart said he would 

hope so.  Attorney Bell said that their main concern is the connection into the canal.  

Commissioner Minnaugh asked what happens if it becomes a stand-off, can it be dissolved and 

returned, and no longer in effect.  Attorney Bell said that the agreement does not have a provision 

that it can be cancelled at any time; so it would remain in place and would have to be negotiated.   

 

Commissioner Goggin asked if the weir is in our easement or is it in CBWCD’s easement.  District 

Director Hart replied it will be in our easement.   

 

Commissioner Good said that one of the standard protocols for any utilities is to impose a 25% 

surcharge for connections that are outside of the utility’s municipal boundaries; and drainage is 

considered to be a utility. 

 

District Director Hart said that would be a decision of the Board.  He said that their initial look at 

this was to make sure that if they were using the District’s canal, and they would get the benefit 

of the District’s facility, that they would be paying the same rate as any property within the 

District.  That is a common practice within utilities, more so on water and sewer, but if the Board 

felt that it was appropriate under this circumstance as well, that in addition to paying the same 

rate that they would pay a surcharge, then they would add that to the agreement.  Commissioner 

Good said that he thinks that they should add it to the agreement.   

 

District Director Hart suggested that the final agreement be brought back.  He said that there are 

now five points that would be added to the agreement for consideration, and he would like to have 

a consensus from the Board for all five points.   

 

Commissioner Good suggested that a motion be made to table this Agenda Item to the next Board 

meeting. 

 

Commissioner Minnaugh moved to table Resolution 2016-04 and bring it back with the changes 



 

 

 -11- 

 

for approval.  Commissioner Good seconded the motion. 

 

District Director Hart said that he will highlight the changes.  They are as follows: 

 

1. Add language that would transfer the obligation for the annual user fee to all future 

property owners based on the Broward County Property Appraisers folio numbers.  

2. Add language that specifically says no additional connections shall be allowed to the 

drainage system. 

3. Add Hold Harmless/Indemnification language related to the connection. 

4. Add language on the requirement for the 5-year recertification and additional language on 

any potential conflicts related to the 5-year recertification and require approval from both 

Central Broward and South Broward as it relates to the 5-year recertification. 

5. Add language on reimbursement of any legal fees associated with a conflict between 

CBWCD and SBDD. 

6. Add a 25% surcharge on the user fees per year, based on connections for properties outside 

of the jurisdictional boundaries of SBDD.  

 

The changes will be made and be forwarded to the developer, and if they are in agreement, it will 

be brought back before the Board for final approval through Resolution.   

 

The question was called and it was carried unanimously. 

 

D. SCHEDULE TENTATIVE BUDGET AND ASSESSMENT HEARING FOR JULY 28, 

2016 

 

 Commissioner Minnaugh moved for approval for Tentative Budget and Assessment Hearing for 

Thursday, July 28th at 8:15 a.m. Motion was seconded by Commissioner Mersinger and it was 

carried unanimously. 

 

E. UPDATE ON SBDD GARAGE BUILDING EXPANSION PROJECT 

 

District Director Hart updated the Board on the status of the garage building expansion project.  

He said that both the rezoning and site plan have been approved; and that he has been coordinating 

with Attorney Bell on the next step, which is to hire an architect to do the design and prepare the 

bid documents; and based on Attorney Bell’s recommendation, SBDD will prepare a procedure 

for hiring a professional consultant and for hiring professional services.  It will be a broad 

resolution which will deal with not only an architect, but any professional services to establish a 

procedure on how SBDD would go about hiring a consultant through CCNA; which is the 

Consultants Competitive Negotiation Act.  This is a state statute which regulates and dictates how 

you can hire professional services; it’s not based on fees, but on qualifications.  Attorney Bell 

recommended that the Board should first establish a procedure; and that procedure would be 

consistent with CCNA and will include a number of scenarios.  District Director Hart said that 

there may be a point in the future where we would like to have a library of consultatns.   

 

District Director Hart recommended two staff members and a Board member to be on the 

Committee.  Hopefully this will be done by July, but more towards August.  He said that this will 

set us back a couple of months on the schedule, but there is no urgency, and he is confident that 

we are going in the right direction; and this way, we will be 100% within the statute.   

 

F. OTHER 

 



 

 

 -12- 

 

 None.  

 
05. Attorney Report: 
 
 Attorney Bell congratulated Commissioner Minnaugh, and Chair Hodges on their re-election; and 

wished Commissioner Good good luck on his election.   
 
06. APPROVAL OF LEGAL FEES 
 
 Commissioner Minnaugh moved for approval of the legal bills.  Motion was seconded by 

Commissioner Goggin and it was carried unanimously.  

  

07.   BOARD MEMBER’S QUESTIONS/COMMENTS 

     

   Commissioner Goggin asked District Director Hart how the piece of property on Flamingo Road in 

Pembroke Pines is going.  District Director Hart said that there has not been any follow-up discussion 

with the representative who first brought it forward, but the direction from the Commission was to 

prepare a policy for selling surplus property.  He has not done anything since that Board meeting, 

but he will be bringing a draft policy for selling surplus property to the Board at a future meeting. 

 

08. MEETING DATE(S) 

 
A. The Next Regular Board Meeting will be held on Thursday, July 28th at 8:00 a.m. with the 

First Public Hearing for Tentative Budget for 2016/2017 Fiscal Year to be held at 8:15 a.m. 
B. Regular Board Meeting will be held on Thursday, August 25th at 8:00 a.m. 
C. The Next Regular Board Meeting will be held on Monday, September 12th at 8:00 a.m. with 

the Final Budget Hearing for 2016/2017 Fiscal Year to be held at 8:15 a.m. 
 

Adjournment at 9:27 A.M.  

 

Respectfully submitted,  

  

 

                                                                             

Robert E. Goggin IV, Secretary 

South Broward Drainage District 

 

 

/rim 








































































































